
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

Date: 15 July 2022 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

On: Monday 25 July 2022 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The 

Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used 
are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public 

will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public 
participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch 

through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 
K James, N Laws, R Lock and S Newton 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 

 

2.   Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 6 June 

2022 (Pages 3 - 6) 

3.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme.  (The deadline for 
registering to speak is by 2pm Thursday 21 July 2021. To register please email 

dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 
 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube
mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

4.   Forward Plan (Page 7) 

5.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 

nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

6.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  

7.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

8.   4/5 Hubbastone Road Property conversion to hostel accommodation (Pages 8 - 

11) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place 
 

9.   Decision taken under Urgency Procedure (Pages 12 - 25) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Legal and the Urgency Decision for 
Discretionary Energy Rebate Scheme 
 

10.   Minutes of Harbour Board (Pages 26 - 32) 

 To receive the minutes of the Harbour Board meeting held 16 June 2022. 
 

11.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph   XXXXXX   of Part I and 
paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

12.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 
 

Monday, 6 June 2022 - 6.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

 Councillors C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 
K James, N Laws and R Lock 

 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 S Kearney - Head of Communities & Place 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 

 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 
Officer 

 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 
 

 Councillors P Pennington 

 
251.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Brenton. 
 

252.    MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 25 APRIL 2022  
 

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Lock and - 
 

Resolved:   That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2022 be signed as a 
correct record. 

 
(Vote:  For - Unanimous)  
 

253.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 

There were no public contributions. 
 

254.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

The Forward Plan was noted.   

 
255.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

256.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 

  There were no Part II items. 
 

 
257.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 

THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

 
258.    LEASEHOLD DISPOSAL OF PART OF THE SPORTS GROUND, KINGSLEY 

RD, BIDEFORD  
 

The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was 

for Members to consider a new leasehold interest of 15 years of part of the Sports 
Ground, Kingsley Road, Bideford to Jurassic Fibre Ltd. for a compound to house a 
telecoms container to supply the local area with full fibre. 

 
Following a brief discussion, it was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by 

Councillor Lock and - 
 
Resolved: 

 
That the proposal for the leasehold disposal of the small parcel of land at the 

Sports Ground, Kingsley Road, as detailed in the report, be approved, and the 
completion of the associated lease documentation be authorised. 
 

(Vote: For 8, Against 1) 
 

259.    MOTION FOR THE OCEAN  
 

Councillor Hodson presented to Members her “Motion for the Ocean” which had 

previously been discussed at Full Council on 11 April 2022, when it was 
unanimously agreed that the Motion be referred to Community & Resources 

Committee. 
 
Councillor Hodson made a heartfelt plea to Members asking for their support to the 

Motion and commenting on how important the Ocean is to us all. 
 

During the discussion it was apparent that Members were in support, but concerns 
raised included the following: 
 

 Future of the landfill site at Northam Burrows which they stated was the 
biggest threat to the Ocean in this area. 

 

 The current position with the Pebble Ridge, reference was made to a Report 
prepared 15 years ago.  

 

 South West Water continually allowing the estuary to be polluted when there 

is heavy rain storms in the area.   Councillor Hodson advised that questions 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

were forwarded to South West Water with specific regard to discharge of 
sewage and the response back was it only happens occasionally and would 

be heavily diluted by rain water. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded by Councillor Christie and – 
 
Resolved: 

 
That the Council pledges to: 
 

1. Review within twelve months the actions and projects that have been 

undertaken to promote ocean recovery for the coast of Torridge District. 
 

2. Consider ocean recovery in our strategic decisions, plans, budgets and 

approaches to decisions by the Council (particularly in planning, 
regeneration, skills and economic policy), aligning with climate change 
mitigation and adaptation requirements, and considering ocean-based 

solutions in our journey towards a carbon neutral and climate resilient future. 
 

3. Ensure that the Local Nature Recovery Strategy strives to support ocean 
recovery. 
 

4. Work with partners locally to deliver increased sustainability in marine 
industries and develop a sustainable and equitable blue economy that 
delivers ocean recovery and local prosperity. 

 

5. Communication through our social media of actions which are being taken to 
aid ocean recovery progress, signpost ocean literacy development 
opportunities, and marine citizenship pledges. 
 

6. Write to the Government asking them to put the ocean into net recovery by 
2030 by: 
 

a) Ensuring Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authorities and Natural 

England have the resources they need to effectively research and monitor 
our growing number of marine protected areas, and to set and enforce 

appropriate fishing levels that support local economies and 
deliver environmental sustainability. 
 

b) Ensuring coastal communities have a meaningful say in the development 

of marine policy to ensure it delivers equitable and sustainable outcomes. 
 

c) Appoint a dedicated Minister for Coastal Communities. 
 

d) And by listening to marine scientific advice, including marine social 
science, to update the Marine Policy Statement and produce a national 

Ocean Recovery Strategy which will: 
 

i) Enable the recovery of marine ecosystems rather than managing 
degraded or altered habitats in their reduced state. 

ii). Consider levelling up, marine conservation, energy, industrial growth, 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

flood and coastal erosion risk management, climate adaptation and 
fisheries policy holistically rather than as competing interests. 

iii). Develop a smarter approach to managing the health of the entire 
ocean that moves beyond Marine Protected Areas and enables links to 

be made across sectors towards sustainability. 
iv). Establish improved processes for understanding the benefits of ocean 
recovery, leaving no doubt the links between this and human lives, 

livelihoods, and wellbeing. 
v). Stop plastic pollution at source by strengthening the regulations 

around single-use plastics and set standards for microfibre-catching 
filters to ensure that all new domestic and commercial washing machines are 
fitted with a filter that captures a high percentage of microfibres produced in 

the wash cycle. 
 

(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 

260.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

There were no Part II items 
 

 

 
The meeting commenced at 18.00 and closed at 18.30 

 
 
    

 
 

Page 6



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2022/23 
 

Leadership 
 

24 May 2022 12 July 2022 6 Sept 2022 11 Oct 2022 22 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 21 Feb 2023 28 March 2022 

         
Community 

& Resources 
(Mondays) 

6 June 2022 
6pm 

25 July 2022 
10am 

12 Sept 2022 
6pm 

24 Oct 2022 
10am 

5 Dec 2022 
6pm 

23 Jan 2023 
10am 

Budget 

Special 
30 Jan 

10am 

6 March 

2023 
6pm 

Tuesday 
11 April 2023 

10am 

Finance 
 

        

Performance 
 

        

 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sports Ground – 
Jurassic Fibre 

(NA) 
 

Cllr Hodson 
Notice of Motion 
– Motion for the 

Ocean (SK) 
 

 

 
Hubbastone Road 

Conversion to 
Hostel (SK) 

 
Urgency Decision 

-Energy 
Discretionary 
Scheme (SD) 

 
Harbour Board 

mins 
 
 

 
Update re 

Skateboard Park 
(AR)??? 

 

Temporary 
Housing 

Accommodation 
(SD) 

 
PART II 

Disposal of 
Council Asset 

(AR) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
Fees & 

Charges (DH) 

  

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



 
  

  

REPORT OF Head of Communities and Place 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: 4/5 Hubbastone Road conversion for hostel accommodation 

Date: 25th July 2022 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider the conversion of the offices at 4/5 Hubbastone Road into 

hostel accommodation 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
TDC own the freehold of these two office properties (built as houses) that sit at the entrance to 
the Fish Dock at Appledore. No 4 is part occupied by 2 office tenants producing a rental income 
of £2,356 per annum and No 5 is currently empty. 
 
Planning was obtained for No 5 in February 2021 for change of use from offices (Class E) to 
hostel accommodation due to the interest from Harland & Wolff in utilising the building for their 
own hostel type accommodation. 
 
Conversion of 4/5 Hubbastone Road into hostel accommodation offers the opportunity to 
provide an 8 bed hostel. 

 
 

2. REPORT 

 
TDC is spending a disproportionate amount of revenue on temporary accommodation, the 
projected expenditure for 2022/23 being circa £1m. Given current residential property market 
conditions and the attraction of the area for second home owners and investors using properties 
as holiday lets and AirBnB lets, suitable properties for hostel accommodation are extremely 
difficult to come by on the open market. This has led to the consideration of alternative 
properties and in particular office properties that are suitable for conversion to hostel use both 
inside and outside the Council’s property portfolio.  4/5 Hubbastone Road is such a property that 
sits within the Council’s portfolio. 
 
5 Hubbastone Road has been vacant since September 2020. There has been no interest from 
potential office tenants for the vacant space at Nos 4 and 5. No 5 in particular is now in poor 
condition, suffering from damp and would need significant capital spending on it to bring it up to 
a lettable standard and compliance with the latest building regulations. TDC estimates put this 
figure in the region of £150,000. Given that, if fully let, the rental income would only be in the 
region of £12,000pa combined with the inevitable void period prior to any letting, there is no 
justification for this spend. 
 
Discussions have taken place on and off with Harland & Wollf since 2020 however, despite 
encouragement to do so, they have not submitted a proposal and therefore it has not been 
possible to issue Heads of Terms or progress this interest. It was on the basis of their original 
interest in No 5 that TDC submitted the application for change of use to hostel accommodation.   
 
In June 2022 the decision was made by SMT to inform Harland & Wollf that TDC was now 
looking at using 4/5 Hubbastone Road for its own hostel accommodation so was ending 
discussions over use of the property by Harland & Wollf. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 8



 
  

Discussions have been held with H&W and we intend to investigate, with them, the possibilities 
of delivering some dormitory accommodation on their site, subject to achieving the necessary 
consents.  The Council will be as facilitative as possible to meet the business requirements and 
help the company thrive. 
 
Although predominantly an industrial area, there are a handful of other residential properties in  
the immediate vicinity and both local buses and the facilities of Appledore are within a 10 minute 
walk so the location is suitable for hostel accommodation. 

 
As shown in the figures below in Financial Implications, significant capital will be required to 
carry out the conversion costs. Recent changes to Building Regulations have imposed extra 
thermal efficiency requirements and hence extra costs however the benefit will be a more 
sustainable building. 
 
Capital funding will come from different sources – Finance report that there is £226K in the 
Housing Capital Budget and £146K in a housing reserve that was originally set aside for 
additional housing options team staffing (who are now recurrently funded) and hence is spare. 
Grant funding is also currently being explored.   
 
The Finance modelling shows the conversion of these properties into hostels is self-financing, 
i.e. the capital costs incurred in converting the properties can be repaid from the rents charged 
and recovered via Housing Benefit. 
 
Planning for use as hostel accommodation only exists for No 5 therefore a separate planning 
application for change of use will need to be submitted for No 4 as Use Class for this property is 
still as offices 

 
 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 
The requirement to serve notice on tenants in No 4. Leases contain the ability for TDC as 
landlord to serve notice at any time on the tenants to terminate the lease. A minimum of 3 
months’ notice must be given 

 
Financial Implications 
 
1 - Finance have run a financial analysis of conversion costs of both Nos 4 and 5 as well as 
just No 5.  The results are summarised below clearly showing that both options are 
financially very favourable to the Council. 

 
Converting 4&5 into an 8 bed hostel would generate net income of £39k per annum at 80% 
occupancy and when one takes into account the temp accommodation costs saved, this 
provides a positive revenue contribution of £146k per annum 
The corresponding figures for just converting number 5 in a 4 bed unit are £14k & £67k 
respectively per annum 

  
The payback period for converting 4&5 is 1.71 years and for converting just 5 is 3.08 years. 

  
The hostels would require occupancy rates of 29-34% to breakeven 
 
 

Page 9



 
  

 
  
2 - Loss of rental income of £2,356 per annum once the office tenants have vacated. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
Significant Officer Contract administration time overseeing conversion works unless 
outsourced 
Ongoing maintenance responsibility for Property team 
 
Sustainability Implications 
Opportunity to improve sustainability of property to comply with Building Regulations 
standards on energy efficiency as part of the conversion works 
 
Equality/Diversity 
n/a 
 
Risk Management 
Ongoing maintenance works 
 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Helps towards delivering the Homelessness Strategy 2020-2025 and increase hostel 
capacity as part of the Communities, Health and Housing theme. 
 
 
Lead Member Views 
 
Cllr Hicks (Lead Member for both Property and Economy) consulted 15/07/22 
 

Page 10



 
  

4.       CONCLUSIONS 
 

The use of 4/5 Hubbastone Road as hostel accommodation represents an opportunity to reduce the  
current expenditure on temporary accommodation by utilising a TDC owned building that is currently 
underused. The capital spend required to modernise and convert the property has a short payback 
period. 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Members approve the proposal for the use of 4/5 Hubbastone Road as hostel accommodation as 
detailed in this report and give authority for the capital spend on the conversion costs and the 
submission of planning permission for change of use of No 4 from office use to hostel use. 

 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Consultations: Senior Management Team 
Contact Officer: Nick Argles 
Background Papers:   

    
    
     

 

Page 11



Page 12

Agenda Item 9



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



1 
 

 
 

 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
HARBOUR BOARD MEETING 

 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom  

 

Thursday, 16 June 2022 - 2.30 pm 
 

 
PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

Councillors P Christie, K James and D Bushby 

 
Independent Members – Mr N Hardaker, Mr T Gibbs and 

                                        Mr J Puddy 
 

ALSO PRESENT R Haste - Operational Services Manager 

 P Brown - Harbour Master 
 K Jarman - Port Facilities Security Officer 

 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 

   
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

117.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor McGeough. 

 
118.    MINUTES  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Bushby and – 
 

Resolved:  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 2022 be agreed as a correct 

record. 
 

A recorded vote was taken. 
 
COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

Bushby, D X   

Christie, P X   

Mr T Gibbs    

Mr N Hardaker X   

Hicks, R X   

James, K X   

McGeough, D    

Mr J Puddy X   

Page 26

Agenda Item 10



2 
 

 
 

 
 

Vote: (For 6) – Mr Gibbs was not present when the vote was taken 
 

119.    ACTION LIST  
 

The Action List was reviewed and updated. 

 
Minute 98 –  

 
Mutual Co-operation – Ilfracombe  

The Harbour Master to explore opportunities for further mutual co-operation with 

Ilfracombe. 

16.6 – carrying out bi-monthly or monthly security drills with Ilfracombe. The scope 

for co-operation harbour mastering wise is relatively limited, interaction with 
Ilfracombe when it comes to security and sharing experiences is working well.  Item 
to be removed from action list. 

 
 
Mooring Policy 

The Harbour Master to explore ways to generate income through moorings. 
 

16.6 – Mooring Policy has been approved and detailed in Agenda item 8.  Starting 
to implement parts of the Policy – getting people to do what they have signed up to.  

120.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 

There were no public contributions. 
 

121.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PARTS I AND II  
 

There are no Part II items. 

 
122.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE 

PERMISSION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND THE COMMITEE  
 

No matters were brought forward. 

 
123.    PORT & HARBOUR ACCOUNTS  

 

The Operational Services Manager explained that no update would be given on the 
accounts because Quarter 4 had not yet been finalised by the Finance Team – still 

in Quarter 1.  Update to be given at next meeting. 
 

The following matters were raised and discussed: 
 

 Concerns were raised at the way in which Local Authority accounts are set 

up.  The Operational Services Manager agreed to speak to the Accounts 

Page 27



3 
 

 
 

Department with a view to changing the format for the next meeting.  
Councillor James commented that he was not averse to the format as it is 

and believed it to be well documented. 
 

 The draft Outturn shows a profit.  The Operational Services Manager 
reiterated his response given at the last meeting, namely that the majority of 
profits had come from staffing.  Following the passing of Paul Labistour, this 

post had remained vacant for quite some time and a contribution made to 
the pension had been returned to the Council. 

 
The Operational Services Manager explained that with the resources now in place, 
the ultimate aim is in the first instance to make the Harbour and pilotage break 

even, and then work towards making a profit. 
 

 
124.    BIDEFORD HARBOUR - SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM  

 

The Harbour Master gave the following verbal update: 
 

All 15 sections of the Safety Management System had now been posted on the 
website and it is meant to be a live document or section of the website, so when 
amendments are made to the document it gets updated live. 

 
If any Member had comments to make on the document, they were asked to 

contact Paul Brown or Kelly Jarman. 
 

125.    HARBOUR MASTERS QUARTERLY REPORT  
 

The Group received an update from the Harbour Master detailing the activities and 

commercial vessel movements in the port and estuary since the last meeting on 20 
April 2022.  It was confirmed it had been a busy quarter for Bideford Harbour, 
although there had been no commercial vessel movements. 

 
The Harbour Master responded to an enquiry from Councillor Hicks confirming that 

the vessel referred to was the “Fruit for Harvest”, it is insured and the owner had 
provided all the documentation and evidence required prior to arriving in the 
Harbour.   It is important that if a vessel is turned away, there must be reasons for 

doing so. The Port Safety Code is very clear on what can and cannot be done 
when it comes to turning boats away.  The Harbour Master addressed all 

questions/points raised by the Group. 
 
During the discussion the following matters were raised: 

 
Middle Dock – the Harbour Master advised that he and Kelly Jarman had had input 

into this project as Marine Professionals.  Councillor Hicks and the Leader are also 
closely involved. 
 

Dredger Deo Gloria – a PEC was done for the new captain and this Certificate will 
last for a year.   If he returns within the year, then his PEC will stand and income 

Page 28



4 
 

 
 

from pilotage will be at a reduced rate of 25%.  If expired will be required to do a 
further PEC. 

 
Sibelco – The Harbour Master gave an update on a conversation he had had with 

Sibelco and confirmed that negotiations are still ongoing. 
 
Fuel costs and road transport - Councillor Christie asked if there was any scope for 

new cargoes due to the increase in fuel costs because up until now road transport 
had been cheaper.  The Harbour Master reported that he had spoken to UK 

shipping regarding this matter, but nothing had as yet come forward.  Anyone with 
connections/suggestions to contact him and he will pursue the matter further. 
 

Councillor Hicks mentioned that previously Devon County Council had used the 
Harbour for salt cargo.  The Harbour Master to speak with the Head of 

Communities & Place re a contact at Devon County Council to discuss this matter. 
 
Previously used to import timber on a large scale – Councillor Christie asked if this 

could be revisited. 
 

The pros and cons of various cargoes and haulage companies was discussed. 
 
Lundy Company – the Harbour Master gave a verbal update on the meeting he had 

attended with Mr Derek Green of the Lundy Company.  The purpose of the meeting 
was to agree rates and charges to the Lundy Island Company for the future 

operating of the “Oldenburg” out of Bideford.  The outcome from the meeting was 
for Mr Green to send a scale of charges that he thinks is fair and equitable to the 
Harbour Master.  Following discussion of the details with the Operational Services 

Manager, a report will then be presented to the Harbour Board Group for 
discussion. 

 
Slipway Clearance – Mr Puddy suggested using a yard scraper on a regular basis 
to help with keeping the slipway clear.  The Harbour Master said he was open to 

suggestions but asked for the matter to be put on hold to see how quick the slipway 
re-silts.  

 
Mr Puddy enquired about the potential for adding a trailer charge for those people 
who are launching at the slipway in the same way as a trailer charge is in place at 

Appledore.  The Harbour Master said a significant factor is that Appledore is far 
busier than the Bideford.  If the slipway started to be used more then maybe but 

would need to be cautious in putting the Council’s resources to something that is 
not busy.  The Operational Services Manager agreed to speak to the Car Parking 
Manager regarding areas for parking and the purchase of tickets. 

 
Oil Spill Plan and IME – the Incident Management Plan – incident management 

exercise will now take place on 20 July. 
 
Mooring Policy – Members expressed their concerns regarding the “Boa 

Pescadore” and sought assurance from the Harbour Master that the situation will 
be monitored. 

 

Page 29



5 
 

 
 

Harland – the Harbour Master confirmed that his role in the case had been 
explained to him very clearly.  

 
Squirty Fountains – Once a quote to repair the fountains has been received it will 

be brought to the Group for discussion.  The manufacturing company had been 
contacted to ask them to look at the fountains, still awaiting a date.  The Harbour 
Master agreed for Mr Gibbs to be present.  

 
Harbour dredging – application had been submitted to the MMO for Mr Glover to 

carry out dredging in the harbour authority area.  The Harbour Master will report to 
the Group when feedback is received. 
 

Harbour Users Group – The Harbour Master referred to the list of suggested 
attendees in the report and asked for comments from Members. 

 
The following proposed attendees were put forward: 
 

 Skern Lodge 

 Jet Skies – the Operational Services Manager to forward contact details 

 Bideford Gig Club 
 

The Harbour Master advised that the proposed Agenda set out in the report is a 
standard Harbour Users Group agenda, but if Members had any further thoughts or 
ideas for inclusion on the agenda then to contact him.   

 
The Group noted the report. 

 
126.    PROPOSAL FOR COFFEE VAN ON FISHERMAN'S QUAY  

 

The Harbour Master gave a verbal report, summarising the document giving full 
details, that had been circulated to Members of the Group.  

 
The comments of the Harbour Master included: 
 

 Bringing life to the Quay which is at present unused 

 Bringing income to the Harbour which had not been there previously and to 

ensure the income goes to the Harbour account 

 May encourage other businesses 

 Forces Officers to look at the utility of that part of the Quay  

 There are other areas the horse box may go in and not necessarily taking 

away car parking spaces 

 Management of rubbish which will need to be written into the licence 

 Tables, chairs and any other movements on a commercial Quay will need to 

be carefully managed  

 Charges to be looked at 

 
During the lengthy discussion that ensued, comments made included the following: 

 

Page 30



6 
 

 
 

 Councillor Hicks expressed concerns with setting a precedent, as a Council 
should go out to tender to give others the same opportunity. He felt it could 

raise big potential problems. 

 Opportunity to gain revenue 

 To treat each and every application on its own merits 

 To put in stipulations such as to be responsible for clearing the site of litter at 

the end of each day 

 The need to look at the plan as a whole for the use of the Quay rather than 

have one business start up 

 Require further details and information  

 The application is temporary not permanent 

 
The Operational Services Manager advised that all details had not been included 

and the reason for bringing it to Harbour Board was to get Member views in 
principle as to whether this is something to consider going forward.    

 
Councillor Bushby proposed, in principle, that the application be accepted at face 
value, subject to meeting the necessary conditions considered appropriate by the 

Council. 
 

Councillor James seconded the proposal. 
 
Further discussion followed and the advice from the Operational Services Manager 

was he would speak to the Legal Department regarding the correct process, and for 
the Harbour Master and Deputy Harbour Master to look at operational implications 

and what is required in the Lease Agreement.  To expedite this matter to ensure 
the café can be operating for the summer season, timescales and the process to be 
taken was discussed.   

 
Mr Hardaker left the meeting at 15.59. 

 
A recorded vote was taken on Councillor Bushby’s proposal, seconded by 
Councillor James. 

 
COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

Bushby, D X   

Christie, P X   

Mr T Gibbs X   

Mr N Hardaker    

Hicks, R   X 

James, K X   

McGeough, D    

Mr J Puddy X   

 

 
(Vote:  For 5, Abstentions 1) - Mr Hardaker had left the meeting. 

 
 
 

Page 31



7 
 

 
 

127.    PROPOSED FUTURE MEETING DATES  
 

The next Harbour Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday 20 October 2022 at 
2.30pm – venue to be confirmed. 

 
128.    ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 

Mr Puddy from the Freshspring vessel reported on the poor condition along the 
Llandavisia Walk.  The Team from the Freshspring had undertaken the task of 

removing weeds alongside the ship which had improved the appearance, but when 
looking along Llandavisia Walk it is in poor disorder. 
 

Other concerns raised by Mr Puddy was when the Freshspring Team were clearing, 
they noticed that the growth along the front of the Quay is lifting the paving slabs.  

Also the retaining wall is actually collapsing which is making that part of the area 
very dangerous.   
 

The Operational Services Manager advised that the upkeep of the structural 
elements of the Quay is the Estates Team, and he will message them for someone 

to look at this issue.   The weeds issue will also be looked into. 
 
Mr Puddy raised a further issue concerning the Water Festival and the Rotary Club 

speaking to the fire brigade about washing the steps down.  He advised them not to 
take on something that is the Port Authorities responsibility without speaking to 

someone.    The Harbour Master confirmed they should speak to him and asked 
that Mr Puddy advise them of this.  
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.30pm and closed at 4.04 
 
 

    
 

 

Page 32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 6 June 2022
	4 Forward Plan
	8 4/5 Hubbastone Road Property conversion to hostel accommodation
	9 Decision taken under Urgency Procedure
	9 - Urgency Decision
	9 - Discretionary Council Tax Rebate Scheme 2022-23
	9 - Email documents

	10 Minutes of Harbour Board
	Minutes


